MINUTES
CITY OF LONSDALE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
SEPTEMBER 11, 2025

1. CALLTO ORDER
Mayor Berg called a meeting of the Lonsdale City Council to order at 7:00 p.m. in the City
Council Chambers, 103 15" Ave SE.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Everyone stood and recited the pledge of allegiance.

3. ROLL CALL
Members Present: Kari Miller, Tom Berg, James Vosejpka,
and Scott Pelava

Members Absent: Brian Wermerskirchen

City Staff Present: City Administrator Joel Erickson, Public Works Director Joe
Dornfeld, City Engineer Jason Malecha, Fire Chief Joe Pumper,
Police Chief Jason Schmidt, and Community Development Planner
Cory Hinz-Ibarra

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor Berg asked if there were any additions, deletions or corrections to the agenda. A
motion was made by Miller and seconded by Pelava to approve the agenda as presented. Vote
for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0.
Motion carried.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Consider Approval of the Minutes from the August 14, 2025 Regular Meeting and the August
19, 2025 Special Meeting
Mayor Berg asked if there were any additions, deletions or corrections to the August 14,
2025 Regular Meeting minutes and the August 19, 2025 Special Meeting minutes. A motion
was made by Pelava and seconded by Vosejpka to approve the minutes as presented. Vote for:
Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0. Motion
carried.

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS
None




7. PRESENTATION OF CITIZEN PETITIONS AND COMMENTS

Gary Skluzacek (601 Railway Street SW) addressed the Council regarding the proposed
apartment complex. Skluzacek stated he has lived in Lonsdale for 74 years and shared
historical context of previous development decisions. Skluzacek referenced an apartment on
2nd Street that initially had 55+ age restrictions that were later removed when the developer
could not fill units. Skluzacek also discussed the 2016 Community Center proposal that was
voted down 400+ to 48. Skluzacek urged the Council to thoroughly research information
provided by architects and developers.

Haley Novacek (308 9th Ave NE) stated she and her husband moved to Lonsdale 11 years
ago after living next to an apartment complex in Burnsville. Novacek indicated they would
sell their home and move out of Lonsdale if the apartment proposal was approved.

Jeff Gardner (326 9™ Ave NE) shared his negative experiences living in apartment complexes,
including issues with barking dogs, garbage, security concerns, and property damage. Gardner
expressed that despite living in a luxury apartment in Eden Prairie, he "couldn't wait to get out"
and does not believe a 58-unit apartment complex is warranted in a city 40 miles from Eagan.

Jeff Vanreese (1027 Ash St NE) expressed concerns about traffic impacts from the proposed
apartment complex, estimating 58-100 additional cars and potential need for infrastructure
improvements like turn lanes and four-way stops. Vanreese also shared concerns about
potential crime based on his experience managing a 52-unit apartment complex.

Keith Black (680 Golden Oak St NE) discussed the permanent risk of approving an apartment
complex, noting "once it's up, you can't put the smoke back in." Black questioned whether
developer promises about the type of community and no Section 8 Housing would remain true
over time.

Ryan Flynn (702 Florida St SW) asked each Councilmember about their position on the
apartment proposal. Mayor Berg indicated he was waiting to hear more information.
Councilmember Miller stated she was torn and needed more information. Councilmember
Pelava was torn on the issue. Councilmember Vosejpka said it is a type of housing needed in
town as it is zoned for that type of housing.

Darrin Zastera (920 Golden Oak Cove NE) shared that his wife previously worked for
Northfield School District and reported that apartment buildings had an average of only two
children per unit, challenging the notion that apartments would increase school enrollment.
Zastera questioned what amenities would keep young people in the community and noted the
Planning Commission had voted against the proposal.

John Werth (519 Harvest Ct SW) thanked Mayor Berg for previous discussions and
expressed concerns about community safety. Werth referenced a recent incident at an
apartment in Northfield involving an armed individual making threats. Werth stated that
approving the apartment would put children in danger and argued for protecting the town's
"slice of America."




Shannon Price (309 9™ Ave NE) stated she lives across from the proposed development and
has worked in law enforcement for 20 years. Price expressed concerns that initially "beautiful
and new" apartment complexes often need to accept Section 8 vouchers to fill vacancies,
potentially leading to crime issues.

Laura Wagner (821 Ash St NE) ) stated she is lived in Lonsdale for 17 years and would
consider moving if the apartment complex was built. Wagner shared her negative experiences
living in apartments and suggested single-family homes would better serve the community
than an apartment complex with potentially inconsistent management.

Paul Stripsky (614 9" Ave NE) stated he moved to Lonsdale in 2021 after living in Eagan for
over 40 years. Stripsky expressed concerns about potential theft issues based on his
experience working near a Section 8 apartment complex and the negative impact on children
in the community.

David Pint (614 9™ Ave NE) expressed concerns about property values and community
safety, noting that people choose to commute from Lonsdale because it is worth the drive to
live in a safe and quiet community.

. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA

None

. OLD BUSINESS

None

10. NEW BUSINESS

a. Consider Approval to Make a Conditional Job Offer to Blake Skluzacek as Fire Fighter
Pumper presented the recommendation to hire Blake Skluzacek as a volunteer Fire
Fighter. Pumper noted Blake is a longtime resident with construction industry experience
and would be a second-generation volunteer Fire Fighter in the Lonsdale community.
Councilmember Miller expressed appreciation for Blake's application and noted the
significance of being a second-generation fire fighter. A motion was made by Miller and
seconded by Pelava to approve a conditional job offer to Blake Skluzacek as Fire Fighter.
Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote:
4-0. Motion carried.

b. Consider Approval to Make a Conditional Job Offer to Dylan Kiasershot as Fire Fighter
Pumper presented the recommendation to hire Dylan Kiasershot as a volunteer Fire
Fighter. Pumper noted Dylan is a longtime resident who both lives and works in town,
which is beneficial for daytime emergency response. Pelava highlighted the importance
of having fire fighters available during daytime hours which has been a struggle for the
department. A motion was made by Pelava and seconded by Vosejpka to approve a
conditional job offer to Dylan Kiasershot as Fire Fighter. Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka,
and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0. Motion carried.




C.

Consider Approval to Make a Conditional Job Offer to Logan Thompson-McMahon as
Fire Fighter

Pumper recommended hiring Logan Thompson-McMahon as a volunteer Fire Fighter.
Pumper noted Logan has been a resident of Lonsdale for the past five years and brings
valuable construction background skills and is an active individual who enjoys athletics.
Pelava asked if this would bring the department to full staffing. Pumper stated they would
be at 26 members, with a full roster being 30, and their long-term goal was to maintain
25+ members. A motion was made by Vosejpka and seconded by Pelava to approve a
conditional job offer to Logan Thompson-McMahon as Fire Fighter. Vote for: Miller,
Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0. Motion
carried.

Consider Approval of Resolution 2025-39, a Resolution Delegating Administration of the
Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act to a Qualified Firm

Erickson said with the City switching engineering firms earlier this year, the administration
of the Minnesota Wetland Conservation Act (WCA) needs to be delegated to Bolton and
Menk. Erickson said the previous administrator was WSB and noted there are typically
only a few items each year related to resident questions about fill placement and annual
reporting. Erickson stated there are several development projects anticipated for 2026,
wetland delineations, TEP meetings, and no-loss applications would need to be processed
in a timely manner. Erickson confirmed there would be no fiscal impact to the City as
applicants are required to provide an escrow and are responsible for all associated fees.
Erickson said if not administered by the City, WCA would be administered by Rice County
Soil and Water District. A motion was made by Miller and seconded by Pelava to approve
Resolution 2025-39. Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None.
Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0. Motion carried.

Consider Approval of Resolution 2025-40, a Resolution Supporting Submission of the
City’s 2026 Capital Budget Request

Erickson said 2026 is a bonding year at the state legislature and the City is requesting
funding of $4,850,000 for a new water tower and water main loop. Erickson said these
improvements would address system redundancy for the southeast section of town
including the Lonsdale Business Park, increase fire protection, stabilize pressure, and
meet demand peaks. Erickson confirmed the deadline to submit the application is October
17, 2025. Erickson noted that a water supply comprehensive study was completed at the
end of 2023, which recommended a water tower in 2028 which aligns with requesting
funding in 2026, receiving it in 2027, and project completion by 2030. Councilmember
Vosejpka emphasized this was a need, especially for redundancy, as they have been close
to losing water for an entire section of town. Councilmember Pelava added that losing
water service causes numerous issues when service is restored, making the loop
extremely important. Mayor Berg asked if the City had ever applied for a bonding bill
before, to which Erickson replied they had not. Mayor Berg also asked about alternative
funding options, with Erickson mentioning PFA low-interest loans as an alternative. A
motion was made by Pelava and seconded by Vosejpka to approve Resolution 2025-40.
Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote:
4-0. Motion carried.




f.  Consider Approval of Resolution 2025-41, a Resolution Amending the City’s
Comprehensive Plan to Rezone the Property Located at 900 Ash St. NE from B-3 Central
Business District to a Planned Unit Development to Allow for an Apartment Facility and
Single Family Lots
Hinz-Ibarra presented the proposed comprehensive plan amendment. Hinz-Ibarra noted
that the public hearing was held at the September 4, 2025 Planning Commission Special
Meeting were numerous public comments were received, all opposing the rezone due to
concerns about increased police calls, citywide crime, and desire to maintain Lonsdale's
small-town atmosphere. Hinz-Ibarra explained that based on the 2040 Comprehensive
Plan and a recently completed Market Study, the proposed amendment aligns with the
City's housing and land use plans. Hinz-Ibarra confirmed that the Market Study showed a
need for 55 apartment units with rents ranging from $1,025 for a studio to $1,450 for a
two bedroom unit. Brian Bruggeman, the applicant, addressed concerns raised by
residents. Bruggeman stated there is no evidence supporting the claim that apartments
inherently invite crime. Bruggeman explained their professional management conducts
credit checks, criminal background checks, rental history screening, and has income
requirements that applicants must meet. Bruggeman clarified that the project is not
intended to be Section 8 Housing and the market prices would inherently price out
Section 8 vouchers. Regarding traffic, Bruggeman noted the site is currently zoned for
commercial use which would generate more traffic than an apartment project. Bruggeman
also shared that in Annandale, over 50% of their apartment residents are females, and
they have various demographics including families and individuals transitioning between
homes. Mayor Berg asked numerous questions about the property, the proposal, and the
City's housing needs. Mayor Berg noted that the property had been zoned B-3 with the
intention of expanding the Rolling Ridge Market Place and there had been no business
interest in the location. Berg clarified by going through the PUD process, the City would
have more leverage to negotiate details like housing type, density, layout, and potentially
restrictions on future Section 8 Housing. Police Chief Schmitz addressed concerns about
crime, stating that while there were issues with the apartments on 1% Ave 15 years ago,
they were resolved with better management. Schmitz confirmed that the police
department has no concerns about handling any issues that might arise from a new
apartment complex. Councilmember Miller expressed concerns about the density of the
proposal and traffic impacts. Miller also mentioned feedback from business owners,
particularly restaurants, who believed the apartments would bring positive business to the
community. Mike Mitchell (109 2™ Ave SW) said he was in favor of the apartment
project and it was a good option for his family members wanting to stay and live in
Lonsdale. Mayor Berg shared context about behind-the-scenes efforts to secure the
business park land, noting that the current landowner had promised many things that were
not delivered. Mayor Berg expressed concern that if the land were sold to an investment
firm from Tennessee instead of being developed locally, it would create more significant
issues for the City. Mayor Berg also noted that many business owners in the industrial
park have been asking for housing options for their employees who currently commute
from surrounding communities. A motion was made by Miller and seconded by Pelava to
postpone the decision until the Thursday September 25, 2025 City Council Meeting
because not all Councilmembers were present. Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and
Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0. Motion carried.




g. Consider Approval of a Proposal Submitted by Bolton & Menk in the Amount of

$38,000.00 for a Wastewater Treatment Plan Evaluation

John Groupman from Bolton & Menk presented a two-option proposal which included a
wastewater evaluation with an asset management plan. Graupman said the evaluation
would assess all components and review existing capacity compared to growth
projections for a 10-year window. Graupman said full facility plan would be a formal
planning document submitted to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency with a 20-year
growth projection, and would position the City for state financing if a larger project is
needed. Graupman noted the plant is generally in good condition for being 22 years old,
with biosolid storage being the most pressing need due to changes in farming practices
that no longer allow spring application. Dornfeld explained that over the past few years,
Staff has faced challenges with the Wastewater Treatment plant, including aging
equipment, biosolids hauling, overall performance issues, and was recommending the
evaluation. Councilmember Miller noted the Council had been discussing the Wastewater
Plant evaluation for some time and supported being proactive rather than reactive. A
motion was made by Berg and seconded by Miller to approve the proposal submitted by
Bolton & Menk in the amount of $38,000.00 for a Wastewater Treatment Plan
Evaluation. Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained:
None. Vote: 4-0. Motion carried.

Consider Approval of an Upgrade to the Computer and Software at the Wastewater
Treatment Plant

Dornfeld presented the necessity to update the computer and software at the Wastewater
Treatment Plant. Dornfeld explained that a recent upgrade of Staff computers to Windows
11 revealed that the SCADA and dialer systems at the WWTP will not operate on
Windows 11. Dornfeld said the proposal includes options with or without a computer
workstation, along with Factory Talk workstation software upgrade and license. Dornfeld
explained that Factory Talk is the system that operates the plant, while WIN-911 is the
dialer system that alerts Staff to plant problems. Dornfeld recommended hiring Automatic
Systems for the software upgrades and Tech Support of MN for the computer. Dornfeld
said the total cost is $21,766.85 and would be funded from the Sewer Fund. A motion
was made by Pelava and seconded by Vosejpka to approve the upgrade to the computer
and software at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and
Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0. Motion carried.




11. OTHER BUSINESS
Department & Council Reports

City Engineer:
Malecha reported Staff had kicked off the Wellhead Protection Plan Part 2 Meeting and

reviewed preliminary figures and potential contaminant source inventory. Malecha said Staff
will meet again in early November to review the draft report.

Public Works:

Dornfeld reported that repairs to the old City Hall basement wall would be completed on
Monday, Public Works reconfigured soccer fields to accommodate the fall soccer league,
continuing to sample for chlorides in the southeast part of town, and blacktopping operations
will restart soon. Dornfeld said the Booster Station concrete work has been completed.

Community Development Planner:
Hinz-Ibarra reported he has been working on the Founders Day packet and announced the
first meeting will be October 13 at 7:15 pm.

City Administrator:

Erickson reported that Staff met with the contractor on the Public Works building roof, met
with two businesses regarding potential expansions, attended the Liquor Committee and
Safety Committee Meetings, working on a Billboard Project, continued work on the 2026
budget, and attended the Chamber's networking event at RR Revival. Erickson noted the
annual OSHA Training for Staff would be held on Monday.

Councilmember Wermerskirchen:
None

Councilmember Miller:

Miller reported she attended the Liquor Committee Meeting, Park Board Meeting did not
meet due to not having a quorum and the next meeting is scheduled for October 13, 2025 at
6:00 pm.

Councilmember Vosejpka:

Vosejpka said the Planning Commission will be meeting on Monday and will be reviewing
City Code §153.078 Off-Street Parking, Loading, and Access and commercial design
standards.

Councilmember Pelava:

Pelava said the EDA will be meeting next Thursday morning at 7:00 am to finalize the 2026
budget, discuss social media responsibilities, and mentioned the Housing Rehabilitation
Grant is available for certain income levels that could cover home improvements.




Mayor Berg:
Mayor Berg thanked all of the citizens for attending and participating in the meeting. Mayor
Berg encouraged their continued involvement.

12. ADJOURNMENT
A motion was made by Pelava and seconded by Miller to adjourn the meeting at 9:34 pm.

Vote for: Miller, Berg, Vosejpka, and Pelava. Vote against: None. Abstained: None. Vote: 4-0.
Motion caried.

Respectfully Submitted:

A

Joel T Erickson, City Administrator




